Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

Monday 15 February 2021
TO: COUNCILLORS

I MORAN, Y GAGEN, V CUMMINS, G DOWLING, D EVANS,
J WILKIE, K WILKIE, K WRIGHT AND A YATES

Dear Councillor,
An extraordinary meeting of the CABINET will be held on SKYPE on TUESDAY, 23
FEBRUARY 2021 at 7.00 PM at which your attendance is requested.
Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
AGENDA
(Open to the Public)
1.

APOLOGIES

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is
advised to contact the Legal & Democratic Services Manager in
advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist
for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at
the end of this agenda sheet.)

929 930

3.

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Residents of West Lancashire, on giving notice, may address the
meeting to make representations on any item on the agenda except
where the public and press are to be excluded during consideration of
the item. The deadline for submissions is 10.00am Friday 19 February
2021.

931 936

4.

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION
PROCEDURE RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
If, by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken, it has not
been possible to follow Rule 15 (i.e. a matter which is likely to be the
subject of a key decision has not been included on the Forward Plan)
then the decision may still be taken if:
a) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, obtains the
agreement of the Chairman of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee that the making of the decision cannot be
reasonably deferred,
b) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, makes
available on the Council’s website and at the offices of the
Council, a notice setting out the reasons that the decision is
urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.

5.

MINUTES
To receive as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet
held on Tuesday 12 January 2021.

6.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is recommended that members of the press and public be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following items of
business in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 (financial/business
affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and as, in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

937 944

(Note: No representations have been received about why the meeting
should be open to the public during consideration of the following items
of business).
PART 2 - NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
7.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS

7a

Purchase Of Land At Fairlie, Skelmersdale
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor J Wilkie)

945 956

7b

Leisure Contract Extension 2021 / 22 Final Proposal
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Y Gagen)

957 964

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille
and in other languages.
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings.

For further information, please contact:Jacky Denning on 01695 585384
Or email jacky.denning@westlancs.gov.uk

REMOTE MEETINGS – GUIDANCE
This guidance is designed to assist members when attending remote
meetings.
The guidance should be read in conjunction with the Council's Remote
Meetings Protocol and Procedures Rules
General
1. If members wish to speak on a particular item it will assist the smooth
running of the remote meeting if they indicate to the Chairman their wish
to speak in advance of the meeting.
2. Please join the meeting no later than 15 minutes before the start of the
meeting to ensure that the technology is working correctly.
3. It is a requirement of the remote meetings regulations that any member
participating in a remote meeting must be able to be heard (and if
practicable also be seen) by all other members, officers and public
speakers participating in the meeting and, in turn, be able to hear (and if
practicable see) those persons.
4. It is also a requirement that the meeting be live broadcast and so any
camera (video-feed) should show a non-descript background and
members should take care to ensure that no exempt or confidential
papers can be seen in the video-feed.
5. At the start of the meeting please ensure that your microphone is muted
and your video feed (if available on your device) is paused. Please
remember to unmute your microphone (and unpause your video feed if
available) when invited to speak by the Chairman!
6. At the start of the meeting the Member Services Officer will read out which
Members and Officers are present. The attendance of members will be
recorded.

7. Please remember to mute your mic/pause your video feed when you’re
not talking.
8. Only speak when invited to by the Chair.
9. Please state your name before you make an address.
10. If you’re referring to a specific page or slide mention the page or slide
number.
11. In the event of failure of the live broadcast then the Chairman will
immediately adjourn the meeting until such time as the live broadcast is
restored.
12. In the event that a member's individual remote connection should fail, the
Chairman will call a short adjournment to determine whether the
connection can be re-established (either by video technology or
telephone connection). If connection cannot be restored after a
reasonable period of time then the presumption is that the meeting
should continue, providing the meeting remains quorate.
13. If connection to a member is lost during discussion of an item of business
at a regulatory meeting (planning and licensing committees) that member
will not be able to vote on that item (unless that part of the discussion
during which connection was lost is, in the view of the Chairman, capable
of being repeated for the benefit of the member concerned).
Public speaking
14. Any member of the public participating in a meeting remotely in exercise
of their right to speak must be able to be heard (and if practicable also be
seen) by members, officers and public speakers participating in the same
item of business and, in turn, be able to hear (and if practicable see)
those persons.
15. The Member Services Officer will mute the member of the public once
they have spoken and remove them from the remote meeting on the
instruction of the Chairman once the relevant item of business has been
dealt with. Note: members of the public will be able to view/listen to the
remainder of the meeting via the live broadcast.
Voting

16. Unless a recorded vote is called by a member, the method of voting will
be, at the discretion of the Chairman, by:



General assent by the meeting (where there is no dissent); or
By the Member Services Officer calling out the name of each member
present with members stating "for", "against" or "abstain" to indicate their
vote when their name is called. The Member Services Officer will then
clearly state the result of the vote (to be confirmed by the Chairman)

17. Details of how members voted will not be minuted, unless a recorded
vote is called for prior to the vote taking place.
Declarations of Interest
18. Any member participating in a remote meeting who declares a
disclosable pecuniary interest, or pecuniary interest that would normally
require them to leave the room in which the meeting is taking place must
leave the remote meeting. Their departure will be confirmed by the
Member Services Officer who will invite the relevant member to re-join
the meeting at the appropriate time.
Exclusion of the Press and Public
19. There are times when council meetings are not open to the public when
confidential, or “exempt” items (as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972) are under consideration. The Member Services
Officer will ensure that there are no members of the public in remote
attendance and the live broadcast is ended, once the exclusion has been
agreed by the meeting for that item(s).
20. Every Member in remote attendance must ensure there are no other
persons present in their remote location who are able to hear, see or
record the proceedings (unless those such persons are also entitled to
be so present). Members must declare to the meeting, if at any point
during discussion of the item, this requirement is not met.

Agenda Item 2

MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register.
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent.
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information.

Notes

Please tick relevant boxes

General
1.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 below

2.

I have a non-pecuniary interest.



You may speak and vote

3.

I have a pecuniary interest because
it affects my financial position or the financial position of a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below

or

it relates to the determining of any approval consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest
4.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the
functions of my Council in respect of:

(i)

Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease.

(ii)

school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below



You may speak and vote



You may speak and vote

(iii)

Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt
of such pay.



You may speak and vote

(iv)

An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members



You may speak and vote

(v)

Any ceremonial honour given to Members



You may speak and vote

(vi)

Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992



You may speak and vote

5.

A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines
in the budget – Dispensation 15/09/20 – 14/09/24)



See the terms of the dispensation

6.

I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the
same purpose



You may speak but must leave the
room once you have finished and
cannot vote

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest.
Interest
Prescribed description
Employment, office,
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
trade, profession or
vocation
Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of
M.
Page 929

Contracts

Land
Licences
Corporate tenancies

Securities

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant
authority for a month or longer.
Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the
relevant authority; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society;
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority;
“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI;
“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with
whom M is living as if they were civil partners;
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited
with a building society.

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions:
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority;
(ii)
Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c)
one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management;
(iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income.
10.2(2)
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your wellbeing or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision.
‘a connected person’ means
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors;
(c)
any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii).
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies.
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest.
NB Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions.

Page 930

Agenda Item 3
PUBLIC SPEAKING – PROTOCOL
(For meetings of Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committees, Audit &
Governance Committee and Standards Committee)
1.0

Public Speaking

1.1

Residents of West Lancashire may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.2

A Parish Council Representative may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.3

The form attached as an Appendix to this Protocol should be used for
submitting requests.

2.0

Deadline for submission

2.1

The prescribed form should be received by Member Services by 10.00 am on
the Friday of the week preceding the meeting. This can be submitted by email to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or by sending to:
Member Services
West Lancashire Borough Council
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

2.2

Completed forms will be collated by Member Services and circulated via email to relevant Members and officers and published on the Council website
via Modgov. Only the name of the speaker (and representative) and details of
the issue to be raised will be published.

2.3

Groups of persons with similar views should elect a spokesperson to speak
on their behalf to avoid undue repetition of similar points. Spokespersons
should identify in writing on whose behalf they are speaking.

3.0

Scope

3.1

Any matters raised must be relevant to an item on the agenda for the meeting.

3.2

The Legal & Democratic Services Manager may reject a submission if it:
(i)
is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;
(ii)
is substantially the same as representations which have already been
submitted at a previous meeting; or

Page 931

(iii)

discloses or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt
information.

4.0

Number of items

4.1

A maximum of one form per resident will be accepted for each Agenda Item.

4.2

There will be a maximum of 10 speakers per meeting. Where there are more
than 10 forms submitted by residents, the Legal & Democratic Services
Manager will prioritise the list of those allowed to speak. This will be
considered having regard to all relevant matters including:
a. The order in which forms were received.
b. If one resident has asked to speak on a number of items, priority will be
given to other residents who also wish to speak
c. Whether a request has been submitted in relation to the same issue.
No amendments will be made to the list of speakers once it has been
compiled (regardless of withdrawal of a request to speak).

4.3

All submissions received will be published on the Council's website and
circulated to Members of the relevant body and officers for consideration.

5.0

At the Meeting

5.1

Speakers will be shown to their seats.
At the commencement of
consideration of each agenda item the Leader/Chairman will invite the
speakers to make their representations. Speakers will have up to 3 minutes
to address the meeting. The address must reflect the issue included on the
prescribed form submitted in advance.

5.2

Members may discuss what the speaker/s have said, along with any other
information/representations submitted under this protocol, when all speakers
on that item have finished and will then make a decision. Speakers should
not circulate any supporting documentation at the meeting and should not
enter into a debate with Councillors.

5.4

If residents feel nervous or uncomfortable speaking in public, then they can
ask someone else to do it for them, including a Parish or Borough Councillor
representative. They can also bring an interpreter if they need one. They
should be aware there may be others speaking as well.
(Note: If a Resident wishes to have their Borough Councillor speak on their
behalf, the Borough Councillor is not a member of the body considering the
item.)

Page 932

5.5

Speakers may leave the meeting at any time, taking care not to disturb the
meeting.

(Please see attached form.)

Page 933

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS

MEETING & DATE …………………………………………………………………
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

ADDRESS

………………………………………………………………………….
………………………………………………………………………….
Post Code ………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Please indicate if you will be in attendance at the
meeting

Please indicate if someone will be speaking on your behalf
at the meeting

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

If someone is speaking on your behalf please provide their contact details:
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Note: This page will not be published.
(P.T.O.)

Page 935

PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS OF THE MATTER YOU WISH TO RAISE
Agenda Item

Number ………………….
Title ……………………………………………………..

Details

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………….
Name …………………………………

Dated ………………………

Completed forms to be submitted by 10.00am on the Friday of the week
preceding the meeting to:Member Services, West Lancashire Borough Council, 52 Derby Street,
Ormskirk, Lancashire, L39 2DF or
Email: member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
If you require any assistance regarding your attendance at a meeting
(including access) or if you have any queries regarding your submission
please contact Member Services on 01695 585065
Note: This page will be circulated to Members of the Committee and published.

Page 936

Agenda Item 5
CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

Start:
Finish:

7.00 pm
7.18 pm

PRESENT:
Councillors:

Portfolio
Councillor Ian Moran
Councillor Yvonne Gagen

Councillor Vickie Cummins
Councillor Gareth Dowling
Councillor David Evans
Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wright

Councillor Adam Yates

Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Economic Regeneration
Deputy Leader of the Council and
Portfolio Holder for Leisure &
Human Resources
Portfolio Holder for Health and
Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder for Communities
and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder for Planning
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Landlord Services
Portfolio Holder for Street Scene
Portfolio Holder for Emergency
Planning, Preparation and
Implementation
Portfolio Holder for Resources &
Transformation

In attendance:

Councillors: Neil Furey, Carl Coughlan, May Blake, Anne Sutton,
David Westley and Adrian Owens

Officers:

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey, Chief Operating Officer
Chris Twomey, Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources
James Pierce, Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial
Services
Lisa Windle, Head of Corporate and Customer Services
Fiona Graham, Head of Housing and Regulatory Services
Matt Jones, Legal & Democratic Services Manager
Christina Iball, Environmental Strategy Officer
Jacky Denning, Democratic Services Manager
Chloe McNally, Apprentice Member Services Officer

51

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

52

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE
RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of special urgency.

Page 937

CABINET

53

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no items under this heading.

54

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The following declarations of interest were received:
1. Councillor Gagen declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items relating to
Lancashire County Council (LCC) as an employee of Lancashire County Council
and did not enter into detailed discussions which affected LCC.
2. Councillor J Wilkie (Tenant of a Council house) declared a disclosable pecuniary
interest in relation to item 7c 'Housing Account - Revenue and Capital Budget
Setting’ for the reasons indicated but was entitled to speak and vote by virtue of
an exemption (nothing in this report relates particularly to her interest arising
from the tenancy).
3. Councillor K Wilkie declared non-pecuniary interest in relation to item 7c
'Housing Account - Revenue and Capital Budget Setting' as he has a connected
person who is a tenant of rented Council accommodation. Insofar as that interest
becomes a pecuniary interest (as it could affect the financial position of their
relative and a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard this as so significant that it is likely to prejudice their
judgement of the public interest) it was considered that he was entitled to speak
and vote by virtue of an exemption as nothing in the report relates particularly to
the relevant tenancy or lease.

55

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 10 November 2020
be received as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

56

CONFIRMATION OF PROCEDURAL MATTERS: FLOODING & DRAINAGE
CABINET WORKING GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE
RESOLVED:

That it be noted that the Leader has agreed to revise the terms of
reference for the Flooding and Drainage Cabinet Working Group as
requested at its meeting held on 2 December 2020, as follows:
Functions
(a) To consider how a wider, more co-ordinate approach to
managing flooding and drainage across the whole Borough
could be achieved.
(b) To liaise with the Environment Agency, Lancashire County
Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority, United Utilities,
Page 938

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

neighbouring Local Authorities, and any other relevant bodies
on the issues of flooding and drainage.
(c) To investigate any opportunities for relevant funding from
appropriate bodies.
(d) To give consideration to all the issues and options
associated with the establishment of an internal drainage
board.
(e) To report back to the relevant Portfolio Holder and Cabinet and,
where appropriate future meetings of Full Council with its
findings and recommendations.
57

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to report relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 775 to 902 of the Book of Reports.

58

DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2021-22
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement &
Property, which provided a summary of the General Revenue Account budget
position for the next financial year, 2021/22.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the financial position for 2021-22 and later years be noted,
and consideration given to how a balanced budget can be
achieved.
B. That the Portfolio Holder for Resources and Transformation is
given delegated authority to submit firm proposals to Council on
24th February 2021 to enable the budget to be set.
C. That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted
to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 28th January 2021.

59

DRAFT MEDIUM TERM CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Services, which set out details on the GRA medium term capital
programme position for the next 3 years.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
Page 939

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

RESOLVED: A. That the medium term financial position be noted, and
consideration given to how a balanced capital programme can be
achieved.
B. That the Portfolio Holder for Resources and Transformation be
given delegated authority to submit firm proposals to Council on
24 February 2021 to enable the capital programme to be set.
C. That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted
to the Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 January
2021.
60

HOUSING ACCOUNT - REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET SETTING
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Services, which provided a summary of the Housing Account’s financial
position.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the financial position be noted and consideration be given to
the budget matters set out in the report.
B. That the use of the Director of Place & Community's delegated
authority, in consultation with the Landlord Services Portfolio
Holder, in relation to rent and service charge changes be noted
and endorsed.
C. That the report be used for consultation purposes prior to the
Council considering this matter in February 2021.
D. That the Housing and Landlord Services Portfolio Holder be given
delegated authority to submit firm proposals to Council on 24
February 2021 to enable the budget to be set.
E. That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted
to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 28 January 2021.

61

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - SECOND
ROUND OF CONSULTATION
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which sought approval of the proposed West Lancashire Borough
Council response to the consultation on the Liverpool City Region Spatial
Development Strategy draft vision and objectives, and suggested policy approaches.
Page 940

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: That the comments at Appendix A to the report, be approved for
submission to the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority as West
Lancashire Borough Council's consultation response on the emerging
Spatial Development Strategy.
62

USE OF S106 FUNDS ON ORMSKIRK CYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN
IMPROVEMENTS
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which sought authorisation to spend Section 106 funds on cycle and
pedestrian improvements in Ormskirk.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

63

That the use of £95,000 of S106 monies from planning permission
2012/0887/FUL (1 Hattersley Way, Ormskirk) to provide cycling and
pedestrian improvements in Ormskirk town centre as outlined in the
report be approved.

ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY PROPOSALS AND USE OF S106 MONIES
ON THE EDGE HILL CYCLE LINK
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which proposed that the plans prepared for the Ormskirk Eastern
Gateway in partnership with Lancashire County Council be subject to public
engagement, and sought authority to spend S106 monies from development at Edge
Hill University on the delivery of the Edge Hill Cycle Link as part of the Ormskirk
Eastern Gateway project.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the proposals for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway set out
within the report be publicly consulted upon, jointly with
Lancashire County Council.
B. That the use of £276,480 of S106 monies from planning
permission 2011/1079/FUL be approved for the improved
provision for cycling and walking access between Ormskirk town
centre and Edge Hill University as part of the Ormskirk Eastern
Gateway proposals.
C. That it be noted that the proposals set out in the report would
Page 941

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

involve the commitment of the Council's £185,000 of Capital
Funding allocated to the Moor Street public realm improvements
and £565,000 of Heritage Action Zone funding to the Ormskirk
Eastern Gateway, together with £1.25m of Lancashire County
Council LTP3 funding.
D. That the report be barred to call-in because a separate report will
be taken to Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 28th
January 2021 to seek their views on the proposals.
64

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGE POINT PROVISIONS
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which sought approval to deliver 32 new electric vehicle charge points
(EVCPs) in Ormskirk and Skelmersdale, utilising funding from the Office for Low
Emission Vehicles (OLEV) and working in partnership with an electric vehicle charge
point provider, BP Chargemaster Ltd.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That a bid to the On-Street Residential Charge Point Scheme
(ORCS) be submitted to OLEV, to secure funding for Electric
Vehicle Charge Point (EVCP) provisions in West Lancashire.
B. That, if successful in the OLEV application, the Council work in
partnership with BP Chargemaster Ltd to install 16 dual charge
points at four selected sites, prior to the 31st March 2021
deadline.

65

FINAL REPORT OF CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE-FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY REVIEW
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Corporate Director of
Transformation & Resources and the Corporate Director of Place & Community,
which set out the final report of the Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
Committee's on a review undertaken on the Financial Inclusion Strategy, attached at
Appendix A, together with the Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021 – 2024 attached at
Appendix 1.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: That the final report of the Corporate & Environmental Overview &
Scrutiny Committee, on the review undertaken on the Financial
Inclusion Strategy and the recommendations contained therein,
attached as Appendix A to the report, together with the Financial
Inclusion Strategy 2021 – 2024, attached at Appendix 1, be approved.
Page 942

CABINET

66

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Q2 2020/21)
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation &
Resources, which presented performance monitoring data for the quarter ended 30
September 2020.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the
quarter ended 30 September 2020 be noted.
B. That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report was submitted to the meeting of the Corporate &
Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 10 December
2020.

67

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3
(financial/business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of that Act and
as, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.
(Note: No representations had been received in relation to the
following item being considered in private)

68

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to report relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 903 to 928 of the Book of Reports:

69

ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation &
resources, which outlined the proposals set out in the Accommodation Strategy
report attached as an Appendix as one of the outcomes of the Sustainable
Organisation Review report agreed by Council in July 2019 and sought approval for
the adoption of the recommendations outlined in section 2.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein

Page 943

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 12 January 2021

RESOLVED: A. That, subject to recommendation C below, and subject to the any
additional budget or resource provision required being considered
in accordance with the Council budget setting process, the Office
Accommodation Strategy attached at Appendix 1 be approved.
B. That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report is being submitted to the meeting of the Executive
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2021.
C. That the Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources, in
consultation with the Resources & Transformation Portfolio
Holder, be given delegated authority to make any necessary
amendments to the Office Accommodation Strategy in the light of
any agreed comments of the Executive Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and to carry out the recommendations contained
therein.
70

PURCHASE OF LAND AT FAIRLIE, SKELMERSDALE
This item was withdrawn.

……….………………………..
Leader

Page 944

Agenda Item 7a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 945

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 955

Agenda Item 7b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 957

